
 

 
FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
Washington, DC 20463 

      March 29, 2022 
BY EMAIL ONLY 
dbacker@ChalmersAdams.com 
 
Coolidge Reagan Foundation 
c/o Dan Backer, Esq. 
1629 K Street NW, Suite 300 
Washington, D.C. 20006 

RE: MUR 7449 
DNC Services Corp./Democratic National 

Committee and Virginia McGregor in her 
official capacity as treasurer   

Hillary for America and Elizabeth Jones in 
her official capacity as treasurer  

Christopher Steele 
Perkins Coie, LLP 
Marc Elias 
Fusion GPS 

 
Dear Mr. Backer: 
 

This is in reference to the complaint you filed with the Federal Election Commission on 
September 2, 2018, concerning the above-captioned respondents.  After conducting an 
investigation in this matter, the Commission found probable cause to believe that the DNC 
Services Corp./Democratic National Committee and Virginia McGregor in her official capacity 
as treasurer (the “DNC”) violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(5)(A) and (b)(6)(B)(v) and 11 C.F.R. 
§ 104.3(b)(3)(i).  The Commission further found probable cause to believe that Hillary for 
America and Elizabeth Jones in her official capacity as treasurer (“HFA”) violated 52 U.S.C. 
§ 30104(b)(5)(A) and 11 C.F.R. § 104.3(b)(4)(i).  On February 17, 2022, signed conciliation 
agreements with the DNC and HFA were accepted by the Commission.  In addition, the 
Commission dismissed the allegation that Christopher Steele violated 52 U.S.C. § 30121 and 
11 C.F.R. § 110.20(b), (f) (g), and (i).  The Commission also dismissed the allegation that Marc 
Elias and Perkins Coie LLP and Hillary for America and Elizabeth Jones in her official capacity 
as treasurer violated 52 U.S.C. § 30121 and 11 C.F.R. § 110.20(b) and (h)(1).  Lastly, the 
Commission dismissed the allegation that Fusion GPS violated 52 U.S.C. § 30121 and 11 C.F.R. 
§ 110.20.  Accordingly, the Commission closed the file in this matter on March 25, 2022. 
 
 Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days.  See 
Disclosure of Certain Documents in Enforcement and Other Matters, 81 Fed. Reg. 50,702  
(Aug. 2, 2016).  Copies of the agreements with the DNC and HFA are enclosed for your 
information. 
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If you have any questions, please contact me at (202) 694-1021 or via email at 

rweiss@fec.gov. 
 
       Sincerely, 
 
 
       Richard L. Weiss 
       Attorney 
Enclosures 
  Conciliation Agreements 
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

ily orAmericand } uke nara
Elizabeth Jones )
in her official capacity as veasurer ~~)

)
‘CONCILIATION AGREEMENT

“Thesematters were instedby signed, wom, and notarized complaints. An investigation
‘was conducted, and the Commission found probable cause to believe that Hillary for America and

Elizabeth Jones in her official capacity as treasurer ("Respondent"), violated 52 US.C. §

30104(GXSXA) and 1 CER. § 104:30X4X)by misreporting he purpose of certain
disbursements.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Commission and Respondent, having duly entered into

conciliation pursuant to 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(4XAXi)toresolve with the Commission allofthe

allegations set forth in the complints in these matters, do herehy agree as follows:
1 The Commission has jurisdiction over Respondent and the subject mater ofhis

proceeding.

IL. Respondent has hada reasonable opportunity to demonstrat that no action should be
taken in this mater

IL. Respondent enters voluntarily into this agreement withthe Commission.
IV. The pertinent facts in this matter areafollows:

1. Respondentsthe authorizedcommittee of HillyClinton's2016
presidential campaign.

2. Fusion GPS is a consulting firm that provides research, strategic

intelligence, and due iigeneservicesto corporations, av ims and investors.
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© 3 Pei Colao ion tind by Respondent dig he 2016
lotion ltride snes, ling ith respect psn ign |

4. InePrin Cfcged Psion GPS to poids
‘services related to Respondent and the DNC Services Corporation/Democratic National |

Committee ("DNC"). |

5. kis Colepaid 102440787FusionGPSn2016
6. Austadinthe Commis Fc Leg Any, ven bly

15,2016 2m Aout 26 2016, Respondent pi 5175000 Pins Cfo what waslg
hcompintsto bo oppsion sch don by Fsion GPS) Rspondepr he
purposeafpayment to PriCi Tg seis” ons disor prs,

7. Respondent contends ht le he eleva ors sed ns
ndtvhat the porto ppsof he disease were doe in scone
withthe ow and Commision gift. Respondent tecniends hat Pekin Cole
tied Fusion GPS in hrc of gl eis provided o Respondent and he DNC
nd that Fusion GPS pertomd esas he etnof Perkin Cae no mates ht wold
esis Perkin Cs npreidin eal dvi and ries othe Respondent and he DNC,
cuting in aicipionof gon. Respondent fre cotnds he he ct tt ain GPS
ayve condo esas etn 4m pion canddte dos not me the rssh
was not conducted in furtheranceoflegal services that Perkins Coie was. performing on behalf

ofRespondent and the DNC.Respondentalso contends that the substance ofthe work

‘performed by Fusion GPS is protected under the attorney-client privilege and work product

dotine.
Vv. ‘The pertinent law in this matter is as follows:

rae 2004



MUR 7291 and 44 lr or Americ)
Consiaion ApeenentPager

1. Underthe Federal Elion Campaign Act of 1971,asamended (he “Act,

pola commits are required 0 report the name and adressof ach person to whom they make

expenditres or cher disbursements aggregating mre than S200pe calendar year, or pr lection

epee for authorized commits, a well she dae, mount, and purpose ofsuch payments. 52

USC. 3010405), (6: 11 CER. § 1430100, (0).

2. Commision regulations define “purpose”as abriefstatementor

description of why th disbursement was made. The ‘purpose of disbursement” ene, when

considered slong with the identity ofthe disbursement recipient, must be sufficiently specific 0

make the purpose ofthe disbursement clear. See Statement of Policy “Purpose of

Disbursement” Entriesfor Filings withthe Commission, 72 Fed. Rg. 887 Jan. 9, 2007) (citing

T1CER.§§ 10430X0)0) (XNA.

VL. Solely forthe purpose fsuing this mate expeditiously and 0 avd futher

egal oss, Respondent docsnotconcede, but will afurthercontest the Commission's nding

ofprobable cause to believe

VII. Respondent will ake th following actions:
1. Respondent il pay civil penalyto the Commision nthe amount of

ight thousand dollars (55,00) pursuant052 USC. §30109XSXA)

2 Respondent agrees not oviolate 2USC. § 30104(DXS)A)and

11 CER 10436X00 in the ur.

IX. The Commission, on requestofanyone ling a complain under 52 USC.§

30109(6X1) concemin themates a sue erinor onsown motion, may review

compliance with his agreement. the Commision belies that his agreementr any
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Charles 
Kitcher

Digitally signed by Charles 
Kitcher 
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BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

In the matter of )

DNC Services Corporation Democratic ) MURS 7291 ana as
National Committee and Virginia )
McGregor in her offical capacity )
as treasurer )

CONCILIATION AGREEMENT

‘These matters were initiated by signed, sworn,and notarized complaints. An

investigation was conducted, and the Commission found probable cause to believe that the DNC

Services Corporation/Democratic National Committee and Virginia McGregor in her official

capacity as treasurer (the “DNC” or “Respondent”), violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(S)(A) and

(BXO)B)v) and 11 CER § 104.3(b)(3)() by misreporting the purposeof certain disbursements.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Commission and Respondent, having duly entered into

conciliation pursuant to 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(4)A)(i) to resolve withthe Commission allof the

allegations set forth in the complaint in these matters, do hereby agree as follows:

IL The Comission has jurisdiction over Respondent and the subject matterofthis

proceeding.

IL. Respondent has had a reasonable opportunityto demonstrate that no action should

be taken in this matter.

Il. Respondent enters voluntarily into this agreement with the Commission.

IV. The pertinent facts in this matter are as follows:

I. Respondent is the national committeeofthe Democratic Pary.

2. Fusion GPS isa consulting firm that provides research, strategic

intelligence, and due diligence services to corporations, law firms, and investors.
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MUR 7291 and 7449 (DNC ServicesCorporationDemocratic National Commitee)Conilnion Agreement
Page 2014

3. Perkins Coie is a law firm retained by Respondent during the 2016
election cycle to provide legal services, including with respect to potential litigation.

4. In2016, Perkins Coie engaged Fusion GPS to provide research services
related to Respondent and Hillary for America (HFA").

5. Perkins Coie paid $1,024.407.97 to Fusion GPS in 2016.

6. As stated in the Commission's Factual and Legal Analysis, between July
15.2016, and August 26, 2016, Respondent paid $849,407.97 to Perkins Coie for what was
alleged in the complaints to be “opposition research done by Fusion [GPS] .* Respondent
reported the purposeof$782,907.97 ofthese payments toPerkinsCoie as “legal and compliance
consulting” on ts disclosure reports.

7. Respondent contends that it ild the relevant reports based on its
understanding that the reported purposesof the disbursements at issue were done in accordance
with the law and Commission guidelines. Respondent further contends that Perkins Coie
retained Fusion GPS in furtherance of ts legal services provided to Respondent and HFA and
that Fusion GPS performed research at the directionofPerkins Coie into matters that would
assist Perkins Coie in providing legal advice and services to the Respondent and HFA, including.
in anticipation of litigation. Respondent further contends that the fact that Fusion GPS may have
‘conducted research relating to an opposition candidate does not mean that th research was not
conducted in furtherance of legalservices that Perkins Coie was performing onbehalfof

Respondent and HFA. Respondent also contends that the substanceof the work performed by
Fusion GPS is protected under the attorney-client privilege and work product doctrine.

V. The pertinent law in this mater s as follows:
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MUR 7291 and7449 (DNC Servis Corporation/Demosratic National Commitee)
Conciliation Agreement
Page 3014

I. Under the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the

“Act”, political committees are required to report the name and addressof cach person to whom

they make expenditures or other disbursements aggregating more than $200 per calendar year, or

per election cycle for authorized committees, as well as the date, amount, and purpose of such

payments. 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(5), (6); 11 CER.§ 1043B)3)(), (x).

2. Commission regulations define “purpose” as abrief statement or

descriptionofwhy the disbursement was made. The “purposeofdisbursement” entry, when

considered along with the identityof the disbursement recipient, must be sufficiently specific to

‘make the purposeof the disbursement clear. See StatementofPolicy: “Purpose of

Disbursement” Entries for Filings with the Commission, 72 Fed. Reg. $87 Jan. 9, 2007) (citing

11 CER. §§ 10430)3)00). @OM).

VI. Solely for the purpose ofsettling this matter expeditiously and to avoid further

legal costs, Respondent does not concede, but will not further contest the Commission's finding

of probable cause to believe.

VIL Respondent will take the following actions:

1. Respondent will pay a civil penalty to the Commission in the amount of

‘one hundred and five thousand dollars ($105,000) pursuant to 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(S)(A).

2. Respondent agrees not to violate 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(S)(A) and

(B)X6NB)Y) and] | C.FR § 1043(G)3)() in the future.

IX. The Commission, on requestofanyone filing a complaint under 52 U.S.C.
§30109(a)(1) concerning the matters at issue herein or on its own motion, may review

‘compliance with this agreement. If the Commission believes that this agreement or any
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Charles 
Kitcher

Digitally signed by Charles 
Kitcher 
Date: 2022.02.22 12:58:42 
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